
 
 

MENDOCINO-LAKE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, June 10, 2015 
 4:30 PM 

Mendocino College   
1000 Hensley Creek Road, Ukiah CA 95482 

President’s Conference Room (#1065) 
 
 
 
 
 CALL TO ORDER  

 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This time is set aside for general public comments.  Additionally, comments may be made at time of discussion of any item.  
After being recognized by the Chair, those wishing to make comments are asked to stand at the podium, state their name, place 
of residence and affiliation, if any, and address their comments to the Committee Chair.  Committee members may ask questions 
of the speaker for clarification but will not generally discuss items that are not on the agenda.  If appropriate, they may refer the 
subject to College staff for research or for the item to be placed on a subsequent agenda. 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 

  
2. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting held on February 3, 2015 
  
3.  Final External Audit Reports  
 • Performance Audit – February 28, 2015 

• Financial Audit – February 28, 2015 
 

   
4.  Report to the Community  
 • As of February 28, 2015  
   

5. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 
ADA Compliance: Persons with disabilities needing assistance, please notify the Superintendent/President's Office at 468-3071 no 
later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.  Meetings are held in locations which are wheelchair accessible. 
 
Agenda Packet and Supporting Documents Notice:  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed in the Vice 
President’s Office, Room 1050, Mendocino College, 1000 Hensley Creek Road, Ukiah CA. 

 

  

 
 



   
MENDOCINO-LAKE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITIZEN’S BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
 

A regular meeting of the Mendocino-Lake Community College District Citizen’s Bond 
Oversight Committee (CBOC) was convened on Tuesday, February 3, 2015, at Mendocino 
College, 1000 Hensley Creek Road, Ukiah, California. 
 
GENERAL MATTERS 
 
Call To Order 
 

The meeting was called to order at 5:05 PM by CBOC Vice President Diane 
Clatty.  

Members Tami Bartolomei absent 
Diane L. Clatty present 
Matt Cockerton present 
Richard Cooper present 
Charlie Kelly present 
Charley Myers present 
Wade Koeninger present 

 
Staff 
Representatives 
 

Eileen Cichocki, Vice President of Administrative Services 
Steve Oliveria, Director of Maintenance and Operations 
Joe Atherton, Director of Fiscal Services 
 

Support Staff 
 

Cindy Chapman, Executive Assistant to the Vice Presidents 

Public Comments 
 

There were no comments from the public. 

Agenda Approval 
 

M/S/C (Koeninger/Cooper) hereby approves the agenda as presented.  The 
agenda was approved with a 6-0 vote. 
 

Minutes/Approval 
 
 

M/S/C (Cooper/Kelly) hereby approves the minutes of the regular meeting held 
on August 5, 2014 as submitted.  The minutes were approved with a 6-0 vote. 

Quarterly Bond 
Reports 
 

Bond Program Quarterly Status Report – December 31, 2014 
Vice President Cichocki reported that as of December 31, 2014 all bond funds 
had been spent and gave a brief overview of what had transpired during the last 
quarter of activity.   
 
Charlie Kelly asked about the Bond Management line item.  Eileen reported that 
the college originally entered in a contract for outside bond program 
management but soon realized the work would be better handled in-house. The 
college saved over $2million in bond funds over the life of the program by not 
using an outside consultant.  Wade Koeninger commented on how well the 
program was run by Mike Adams and Carolyn Pryor. 
 
Wade Koeninger asked about the website.  Eileen explained to him the security 
patch issue in December and now the timeline for working with individual 
departments to update their pages before the new website is rolled out. 

1 
 



   
Wade asked about accretion on page 6.  2017 is the most advantageous time to 
call the bonds.  A couple of the members thought now would be a good time 
with such low interest rates.  Richard Cooper asked if there is a prepayment 
penalty which there is and that is why we would not call the bonds at the present 
time. 
 
Bond Program Financial Activity Report – 10/1/14 through 12/31/14 
Presented for information.  The majority of funds spent in this quarter were for 
the road repair project. 
 

Annual External 
Audit Reports 

Performance Audit – June 30, 2014 
The committee reviewed the Performance Audit.  The objective of the 
Performance Audit is to determine whether proceeds from the sale of the Bonds 
have been used only for bond projects approved by the voters through the 
approval of Measure W and to determine whether bond proceeds that have been 
used for salary transactions were in support of Measure W and not for the 
District’s general administration or operations.  The audit found the District 
properly accounted for the expenditures of bond funds. 
 
Financial Audit – June 30, 2014 
The committee reviewed the Financial Audit.  The audit found that the District 
had proper internal controls and that the financial statements accurately 
presented the proceeds and use of bond funds. 
 
M/S/C (Cooper/Kelly) hereby receives the Performance Audit and Financial 
Audit as of June 30, 2014.  The audits were received with a 6-0 vote. 
 

Schedule for Final 
Meeting 

On June 9, 2015 at 5:00 PM in the Board Room CBOC members will meet to 
review and accept the final audit of the Measure W Bond program for the period 
July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014.  Following the bond program bylaws, 
CBOC will disband by June 30, 2015 after the completion of the final audit 
which will be conducted by Matson and Isom during the month of May.  The 
final audit will be paid for by the District as all bond funds have been spent.  The 
final audit will be presented to the Board of Trustees at the June 10, 2015 
meeting, and a final report to the community will be completed in June 2015.  
Wade Koeninger asked that recognition be included in the report to the 
community for the excellent work provided by Mike Adams and Carolyn Pryor 
during the bond program.  Other committee members agreed with his request.  It 
was also agreed that the prior committee members be recognized in the report to 
the community. 
 
Richard Cooper will work with local Congress members to obtain proclamations 
for all the past/present committee members along with Mike and Carolyn.  Wade 
Koeninger also asked if Larry Perryman could be invited to the last meeting to 
recognize his work during his time as Vice President. 
 
Wade Koeninger also asked if it is this committee’s purview to make a statement 
that as citizens of this county they are very comfortable in terms of the 

2 
 



   
reassessment of the tax rate set each year by the County of Mendocino.  The rate 
has never gone over the $25 limit and for 2015 was set at $23 per $100,000 
assessed valuation. 
 

Future Agenda 
Items 
 

None   
 

Adjournment M/S/C (Cooper/Myers) RESOLVED, That the Mendocino-Lake Community 
College District Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee does hereby adjourn the 
meeting at 5:23 PM.  
 

 Submitted by:    
 Cindy Chapman, Executive Assistant to the Vice Presidents 

 
 

3 
 







































MEASURE W FACILITY BOND FUNDS
On November 7, 2006, voters in the Mendocino-Lake Community College District (MLCCD) passed Measure W, authorizing $67.5 
million in facility bond funds. Measure W encompassed 30 construction and renovation projects that included the Ukiah campus, Lake 
Center and the Willits/North County Center. The �rst Bond issuance, in the amount of $30 million, took place in March 2007  and the 
second bond issue occurred in August of 2011 in the amount of $37.5 million.  All bond funds were expended by December 31, 2014.

Pictured from left to right:
Ukiah Campus

Lake Center
North County Center

INDEPENDENT AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE REPORT 
PERIOD ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2015
The Committee received the District’s Independent Auditors’ 
Report for the �nancial activity for the bond proceeds as of 
February 28, 2015. This report was prepared by K•Coe Isom, 
Certi�ed Public Accountants, in accordance with the 
requirement for a separate review of �nancial activity per the 
provisions of Proposition 39. 
Mendocino-Lake Community College District has properly 
accounted for the expenditures of the Measure W General 
Obligation Bond. The funds were not used for salaries of school 
administrators or other operating expenditures.

BOND IMPLEMENTATION PLANNING COMMITTEE
Arturo Reyes, Superintendent /President
Eileen Cichocki, VP - Administrative Services, BIPC Chair
Virginia Gule�, VP - Education/Student Services
Karen Christopherson, Director - Information Technology
Barbara French, Director - Nursing (Faculty member)
John Koetzner, Head Librarian (Faculty member)
John Loucks, Telecommunications Technician (Classi�ed member)
Steve Oliveria, Director - Maintenance & Operations 

CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMIT TEE
Tami Bartolomei, Business Representative • Ukiah
Charlie Kelly, Tax Payer Association Representative • Ukiah
Richard Cooper, Foundation Representative • Ukiah
Charley Myers, Senior Citizens’ Organization 
Representative • Redwood Valley
At-Large Members: Diane Clatty • Redwood Valley
Matt Cockerton • Lakeport; Wade Koeninger • Ukiah

FINAL



MEASURE W BOND PROGRAM - AUDITED ACTUALS

Bond Proceeds     $67,500,000
Interest Earned     $2,620,691
TOTAL REVENUE     $70,120,691

Disabled Access Improvements   $151,213
Energy Projects     $751,793
Flooring Replacement    $236,047
HVAC Upgrades and Additions   $318,542
Other Campus Infrastructure    $1,355,905
Point Arena Field Station    $153,437
Renovation for Instructional & Student Service Expansion $496,156
Replace Equipment - Theater, Recording Studio, P.E. $477,426
Solar Technology - Energy Generation   $1,427,198
Technology Upgrades in Classrooms   $298,449
Re-roof Court Center Buildings   $75,036
Re-roof Agriculture Headhouse   $59,441
Re-roof Center for Visual and Performing Arts  $333,010
Re-roof Child Care Center    $45,624
Re-roof Physical Education Building   $454,327
Re-roof Voc/Tech Building    $199,607
Allied Health/Nursing Facility   $2,307,304
Athletic Field Improvements and Renovation  $750,664
Library/Learning Resource Center   $23,795,796
Student Center Cafeteria (renovate current Library Bldg.) $3,914,335
Maintenance/Warehouse    $4,698,153
Media/Computer Graphics Lab   $93,977
Modernize Vocational Program Facilities and Equipment $521,886
Enterprise Resource Planning and Network Upgrade $4,681,210
Lake County Center    $13,645,225
Willits/North County Center  $6,879,146
Bond Project Management    $1,999,783

TOTAL EXPENDITURES    $70,120,691

We would also like to acknowledge the following 
individuals who donated their time to serve on 
the Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee since its 
inception in 2007:

Marty Lombardi,  Jim Mulheren, Gary D. Smith, Sabra 
Lughart, George Feola, Myron Holdenried, Bill  Jack, 
Joanne LaCasse, Diane Pauli,  Timothy Poma, Xiao 
Hui Lau, Dave Geck, Michelle Chung, Richard 
Eschenbach, Jake McGrew and the late Al Beltrami.

MENDOCINO COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Joel Clark • Hopland
Paul Ubelhart • Willits
John Tomkins, President • Lakeport
Janet Chaniot • Potter Valley
Joan Eriksen • Ukiah
David Geck, Clerk • Kelseyville
Edward Haynes, Vice President • Ukiah
Nayeli Castaneda • Student Trustee

THANK YOU TO THE COMMUNITY!

Special thanks to Mike Adams, former Director of Facilities Planning and Carolyn Pryor for their 
dedication and hard work in making this bond program a major success!


	CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
	Wednesday, June 10, 2015
	4:30 PM
	Mendocino College
	1000 Hensley Creek Road, Ukiah CA 95482
	President’s Conference Room (#1065)

	CALL TO ORDER 
	Final External Audit Reports
	Report to the Community
	ADJOURNMENT

	CBOC Minutes 2-3-15 eec.pdf
	MENDOCINO-LAKE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITIZEN’S BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
	GENERAL MATTERS




